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NASA Goddard Space Flight Center is pleased to provide you with the following questions received and the responses given in regard to its Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Solar Arrays in support of the LRO Project.

The questions are given below with corresponding responses in bold.

1. Can you please clarify how many panels are to be delivered as part of the LRO program?   According to Section B of NNG06137671R, table B-1, the contractor is to provide the following: 

Item 11: Test Panel - 5 
Item 14: Qualification Panel - 1 
Item 16: Test Panel Assembly - 1 
Item 18: Flight Panel - 85 

The items listed above are not the entire deliverables required for the panels.  Please see Clause B.1, Deliverable Requirements, which lists other items (including Item Numbers 11-35).  The quantity is listed beside each deliverable item.

2.
Section G of NNG06137671R, table G.5, List of Government-Furnished Property 

the following is listed 

Substrate for Qualification Panel: 1 
Substrate for Test Panels: 5 
Test Panel Assembly: 1 
Substrate for Flight Panel: 85 
Substrate for Isc and Voc Sensor Panel: 1 
Substrate for Test Panels: 5 

Is the last line item a typo?
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Clause G.5, List of Government Furnished Property, lists the property which NASA plans to GFE to the offeror who is selected for this competition.  The list has been revised by deleting the last two items listed since they were listed two times inadvertently.  The revised list is as follows:

	Description
	Reference
	Quantity
	Delivery Date

	Substrate for Qualification Panel
	SOW 3.3
	1
	3 Months After Contract Award (ACA)

	Substrate for Test Panels
	SOW 3.3
	5
	3 Months ACA

	Test Panel Assembly
	SOW 3.3
	1
	7 Months ACA

	Substrate for Flight Panel
	SOW 3.3
	85
	8 Months ACA

	Substrate for Isc and Voc Sensor Panel
	SOW 3.3
	1
	8 Months ACA


Due to the error in the RFP, please see Amendment Number 1 to RFP NNG06137671R for changes in Clause G.5.  

3.
Also can you please confirm whether our understanding of the environmental testing requirements is correct? 

Thermal Vacuum Environmental testing 
1. 85 flight panels 
2. 1 Qualification Panel 
3. 1 Isc and Voc sensor Panel 
4. 1 Test Panel Assembly 

Thermal Ambient Environmental testing 
1 Qualification Panel 
1 Test Panel Assembly

Yes; your understanding is correct.
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4.
With reference to the RFP NNG06137671, LRO solar array, for which we are working to provide a proposal, we'd like to ask you few clarifications; in details:

What is the type of material/design of the substrate that will be provided by GSFC 

in the frame of the program?

 

Answer:

The substrate will be aluminum honeycomb with graphite composite facesheets. The front facesheet will include kapton insulation. 


What are the lateral dimensions of the structural frame relevant to the test Panel assembly (to select a proper TV test facility)? 

Answer:

 

The exact dimensions of the test panel assembly have not yet been finalized. However, the assembly will consist of two panels side by side mounted on a structural frame. The dimensions of the test panel assembly will be approximately 60 cm x 47 cm. The thickness of the structural frame will be approximately 4.0 cm.


What are the lateral dimensions of the structural frame relevant to the Flight Panel assembly (to size the hot temperature test box)?

 

Answer:

The exact dimension of the flight panel structural frame have not yet been finalized. The approximate dimensions to which the hot temperature test apparatus is to be sized are to accommodate a panel 3.2 meters tall x 1.5 meters wide. Again, the approximate thickness of the structural frame is 4.0 cm.


Which type of panel connector GSFC selected? Are they CFE?

 

Answer:

The panels are not required to be delivered with connectors. The contractor is required only to provide terminal posts on the diode boards to which GSFC can wire. GSFC will wire the panels together and to connectors after delivery. GSFC will wire connectors onto the test panel assembly prior to delivery to the contractor. The connector type will be provided to the contractor by the time of the Design Conformance Review.
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5. What are the dimensions of the test panel assembly? This information is needed for the design of the test panel assembly shipping container.

Answer:

The exact dimensions of the test panel assembly have not yet been finalized. However, the assembly will consist of two panels side by side mounted on a structural frame. The dimensions of the test panel assembly will be approximately 60 cm x 47 cm. The thickness of the structural frame will be approximately 4.0 cm.
